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Turtle ré;nains irom a late 18th
century well at Leadenhall Buildings

THIS ARTICLE describes a group of turtle bones
that were formerly in the collections of the London
Museum (Lond. Mus.Acc, No. A26361) and are now
held by the Muscum of London, where they may
be inspected on request. The material (Fig.1, A-G)
consists of a skull, three lower jaws, pieces of three
costal bones (bony plate of the carapace) and a
portion of the hypoplastron (bony plate of the
belly shield), All of these skelctal elements are
wlentified as Green turtle Chelonia mydas (L), and
are believed to come from-three separate animals,

An additiona]l note describes the remnins of
turtle from (wo other archaeological deposits in
London which, together with the bones from Leaden-
hall Buildings, are relics of the trade in live turiles
that took place in London in the late 18th and 19th
century, The origing of this trade are examined in
the last section of this article

Remains of Tuortle from Leadenhall Buildings

Agcording to the London Museum locality register
for 1923-1924, the turtle remains originally came
from Leadenhall Buildings and were purchased in
MNovember 1923 Unfortunately, as with much of
the material acquired by the museum at that time,
there is no information on their history, other than
that they were found all together ‘in a well in
Leadenhall Buildings® and that whoever made the
entry in the register believed them to be of mid
I8th century date. Other objects recovered from
this same well and sold lo the museum Include a
wooden spigot (vent plug of cask) {(Acc.No. A26362)
and picces of six wineglasses (AccNos. A26354-
A26359). The wineglasses have been examined by
Fozemary Weinstein, Keeper of the Tudor & Stuart
Department, Museum of };_undnn. who reports that
apart from one example of ¢ 1705, all of them are

1.  Archasoroolopis attached o Dept. Urban Archae
alogy, Mnseum of Lomdon and  Dhept,  Foology,
British Musteum (Matural Histery), Loadon SW7,
Reptile  soction, Dept. Foology, Britlslh  Museum
(Matural History), Lomdon SW7.

Jean Maocdonald, pers. coenm,

The address for Leadenhall Buildings in the Post
Office Divectory for 1923 is given a5 ‘the corner of
Gracechurch St and Leadenkall 5t
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of late I8th o carly I19th century date {certainly
nat later than ¢ 1815F. On this evidence, a more
accurate date for the turtle remains from Leadenhall
Buildings would be between ¢ 1750 and ¢ 1815,

We have not besn able 1o ascertain the exagt
circumstances in which all of this material from
the late 18th century well came to be discoverad,
but it would seem from the London Museum
records that there was considerable activity in and
around Leadenball Buildings between Cetober 923
and November 1924, Many objects from this section
of the City were being bought by the miseum
during this perid, including some fine pieces of
mid to late 18th century wineglasses, a scent bottle
and medicine bottle, both ¢ 1740, and pant of a
custard glass ¢ 1780 (Lond. Mus. Acc.Nos, A26280-
AIBZIIF. All of these came from a ‘cess pool in
Leadenhall Buildings' and were purchased in
October 1923, One further entry in the museum
catalogue, for November 1924, is of special interest
as the object listed, a rare late 18th century pewier
pot used for draining wine battles {Acc.No, A27230)
was recorded as having been “found in demolishing
an old house in Leadenhall Buildings’. This
reference to demolition confirms the impression
gained [rom the earlier records that redey apment
of the area was in progress throughout the third
decade of the present century, and it was this activity
that led to the discovery of the turtle bones,

Inspection of the maps in the Guildhall Library’
has tevealed that the arrangement of buildings
along the eastern side of Gracechurch St and
southern side of Leadenhall St. remained virtually
unchanged from 1799 to 1875, Then, sometime
between 1875 and 1887, the intersection hetween
Gracechurch St. and Leadenhall 5. was much

Y Rosemary Weinsein, pers. comor See appendix,

b. Ome of the wine plasses, with n coloured enamel—
twist stem and howl enpraved with » rose ¢ D760
(ADGZR0} was selecied for display at the exhihition
of London glass beld at the London Museum in
1570, F. I Glanville & I. Pollard, Glass in
Latndon, London Museum (19703 13,

1. In all, nine maps were examined. These were dsted:
Frss 1RI9; 1842 1875: 1887; 1896 1916: 1937; 1545



authenticity {and significance) of the find"® At the
very least the poet of St Erkemwald was wriling
for an audience which was aware that strange things
had been found, and might be found, by digging
in the ground in the vicinity of 5t. Paul’s.

Yet could there be more? Coald the writer have
been inspired by a particular lnd? What follows can
be no more than speculation — perhaps wle specula-
fion. The pagen judge's tomb had been inscribed, but
the fnders had been unable o read the inscription

use it was “runish” — the word simply means
“indecipherable™. We know of one monument that
originally stood in or mear 5t. Paul’s on which was
an inscription that would certainly have defeated
medieval attempts to read . Part of it &= in the
collection of the Museum of London — a stone
glab carved in  1lth-contury  Anglo-Scandinavian
style with a lion and serpent (Figs 1 & 337, On the
edge is an inscription that is not only runish but
runic, recording in the Old Norse runic alphabet
the names of those who erected the monument
(Fig. 3); the slab probably formed part of a cist or
tomb-chest, When the surviving stone was found in
1852 it was apparently nat in sinc®, Between the
11th century, when is was carved, and. its [%th-
century  discovery the tomb had been disturbed.
This might have happened during the rebuilding
began after the fire which destroyed the Saxon
cathedral in I087, doring the construction of the
MNew Work, or during minor bullding operations
on the cathedral or in the cathedral precimets; if it
had come (o light during Wran’s work in the 17th
century it seems likely that some antiquary would
have taken nofe of if. Ti js nol impossible thap (his
monument, or something like i, was st uncovered
in ihe 14th cenfury, within the memory of the S
Erkenvald poet and his audience, and served as the
inspiration for the talke,

51 Erkenwald may be unreliable as a record of
actual archaeological investigation in either the Tih
or the 14th century. It certainly seems to reflect a
14th=century interest in the subject, and one writer's
view of the likely reaction to & chance find and the
sorl of efforts that would be made o explain it

There has recently been some discussion in the
{eaminued on page 23)

16 Any find of this natore on a site which may well
harve long hesn regarded as smored deserves coreful
consideration in view of such similar finds as those
made by Brian Hope-Taylor in the (77 “temple' nt
the MWorthumbrian royal centre at Yeavering (B.
Hope-Taylor Yeavering; an Anglo-Brifish cenire of
early  MWorthumbeia (London 1977) 0%-100; 277-278),
ecarlier discoveries ot Harmow Hill, Sussex (G, A
Hollevman “Harrow Hill Excavations 19367 Surcex
Archaeel, Coll, T8 (1937 248-250), or even (perhaps
not sirictly comparable) those at Cadbory  Castle (L.
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Fig 3 (lefip: “RBut runish were the measoms (5en-
tences)  thet stood there In 2 row” The nmle
imseriplion on the leff-hond edge of the 56 Paulh
slah, (Photo: The Muscum of Londom)

Fig 3 (righi): The rmic inscription runs '|H"l|-l§:ll|}'
wp, then down, the edge of the slab: : KIMA i
LET : LEKIA 1 STIN : THENSI : AUK @ TUKI 3
fiGinna hsd this stone kabd, together with Toki™).

Alcock By Sonth Codbury iv thar Cameled . o S
(Lopdon 1973 136-13T7).

Museum Accession Mo, 4003, normally displayed in
the “Saxon London" gallery.

The descriptions of the finding of the stone, though
confused, seem io imply this, Tts relationship with
ihe skeleton found in & rowgh hollow to the north
is not clear, and there seems {0 have been no trace
at the time of any other stonewerk making up the
supposad cist — though it has been sugge st
parts of 2 grave-slab [Iater acquired by the Baitish
Museum might come from the same monoment.

if



Fig. 1: Drawings of the skeletal remains of Green furile
Chelonia myday from late 18th century well, Leadenhall
Buildings, City of London: Skull (A) lateral view (H)
dorsal view; () mandibular ramus, dorsal view; (I - F)
parts of three costal bomes; (G} frapment of hypoplas-
fron. Specimens D, E & G show evidence of butchery
{arrowed).

{Drawings by Katharine Hayes Armitage)




altered through re-alignment and widening of these
two roads. On the BT map, the north ezstern
ling of Gracechurch 5t has been extended round
intoy Leadenhall St. with the addition of teo build-
ings (Mos, 99 & 100 Gracechurch ), The present
locations of Mos, -6 Leadenhall 5t therefore lie
further eastwards than their predecessors of the
late 18th century,

By superimposing Horwood's map of 1799 onio
Goad's 1949 plan (and after due allowance being
made for the displacement eastwards of the num-
bering of the buildings along Leadenhall St that
took place in the mid 1%th century) the position of
Leadenhall Buildings is found io lie approximately
in the area once occupied by Nos. 2-5 Leadenhall
5t. The well and cess pool uncovered in 1923 pro-
bably were situated in the vard to the rear of these
dwellings,

Information obtained from the London Direci-
ories show that these buildings in the late [8th
centurg were owned {or ? rented) by the following
people? : —

No, howse  MName of occopler (& date)
2 Tohn Lambe {1799)

Profssion
mineral-waler
wanzhouseman

3 Tohn Dravis (1799 & citizen
1. 1. Kidghly {1799) mierihanl
4 Tohn & Samucl Barrows (1783} mealmen
Samue]l Barrow {17909) hiscait baker
5 James Woodmason (1783) statiomer

Of these, only I, J, Keighly at No. 3 Leadenhall
3. might possibly have any connection with the
turtle bones found in the well. The evidence is some-
what circumstantial and depends on the interpreta-
tion that J. J, Keighly is the same on listed in
Holden's Triennial Direciory for 1799 under Beck-
ford & Keighly, West India merchants of 3 Leaden-

hall leather market. We must leave it 1o the historiz,
o pursue this line of eoguiry further and wish only
to say that such a firm, dealing as it did with the
West Indies, would have had the opporiunity to
become mvolved in the turtle trade,

General osteological description

The turtle bones from Leadenhall Buildings are
identified as follows:—

1 skull, complete except for the squamosal bones
which have become detached and lost in
antiquity (Figs. 1A & 1B)

} mandibular rami, one complete, two with their
articular bones missing (Fig. 1C)

3 costal bones from the carapace, incomplete
(Figs, ID-F)

1 hypoplasiron from the belly shield, portion
only (Fig. 10)

All of the eight skeletal elements are in & good
state of preservation. They arc stained light brown
and have the appearanca: of having come from
either a damp or, possibly, a waterlogged deposit.

Two of the thres costal plates (Fips, 1D & 1E)
and the portion of hypoplastron (Fige 1G) bear on
their inner surfaces marks made by a cleaver,
showing evidence of batchery,

By comparison with the collection of tfurile
skufls at the BM (NH), the age of the skull from
Leadenhall Buildings is assessed as sub-adult.

Although the squamosal bones are missing, the
remaining portion of the skull is sufficiently intact
to allow measurement, These measurements (Fig.
4, appendix) which were devised by the authors,
are given in Table 1,

#. The list was compiled from Kenr's Dircciory for the
year f7EY and Holden's Triemmial Directory for 1709,

Point of measurement

Todal length: Median point on premnxillae — exiresily
oocipital cresi

dylobasal lenprh: Median point on premaxillae — aboral barder

al m.'ci[.!ill.l.'l comdlyle

Cranial length: Median point on premnaxillae —
mrietal hone

Gireptest dismeter of orbit

Width of skull af junction of squamosal, pestorhial & quadraiojugal

banes
Squamosal widih
Bagal width weros mandibular condvies

Least width between the orblts: Measured in region of profronial—

fromial suture

Height of skull; Articular surface of condvlos  masdibubaris—

highest @levation of parietal bone

Designation Value
as in Fig, 4
of suprt-
1 1454
. 2 1150
poalenior edge of
3 128.5
4 48,7
] ELE
fi Tt
T El6
| 414
& LT

Tahle 1: memmmh of the skull of Chefonia mydas from late 18th century

well, Leadenhall Buildings. City of London (London Museum Ace. No, A26361).
All measurements are in .



Estimation of carapace length

Figure 2 shows the relationship between length
of skull and straight length of the carapace in
Green turtle. These data are based on measurements
taken by the authors.on the series of 13 complete
Grean turtles from the Philippines in the collections
of the BM{NH Although the heads of these
turllées retain their covering of £kin, it proved pos-
sible to locate the posterior edge of the parictal
bonez on each of the dried specimens and 50 measure
their cranial lengths directly.

From the diagram, it can be scen that there is
g strong positive correlation between the two
variales, with the observations distributed closely
along a straighe line. The regression line shown in
Fig. 2 was derived from the formula:—

Y=a 4 bX

Where: Y is the length of carapace in mm; X is
the length of skull in mm; a (intercept) is — 1 &6;
b {slope) is + 6,1%.

The correlation coefficient has been calculated
at 4+ 097, and thiz high value confirms the very
close relationship that exists between the two chosen
wariates,

Using as a model the regression equation
Y=—I186+6.19 (X) derived from the data on the
series of Philippine turtles, an estimate of the cara-
pace length of the Leadenhall Buildings turtle may
be obtained from its cranial length.

Assigning the cranial length of the London speci-
men (128.5mm, S5.lin) to X, the length of the
carapace is estimated at 609mm (24in). The 959
confidence limits for this estimated walue are
caleulated to lig at 609mm ples and minus 48mm'™,

Liveweight of the London turtle

In addition to the close relationship befween
length of skull and length of carapace, there is also
known to be a direct functional relationship betwesn
carapace length and body weight in Green turtle,
based on the formula “W=AL% Where: W is the
weight in pounds; A is 0.0045; L is the carapace
length in inches™, On the basis of the data relating
to Green turtles from South Yemen published by
Hirth & Carr (197007, the liveweight of the Leaden-

%, BM({NH) Rep Nos, 1978 2016-2130, Series includes
bivth male and female, and @8 mesily sub-adults with
a few younger turiles,

i0, P. 1. Armitage wishes to thank Kathleen M. Shaw,
Biometrice Section, BMiNH), for advice amd help
with the siatistical amalysis, Caleulations followed
those deseribed by G, W, Snedecor & W 0. Cochzan,
Siwisiical Methods, Towa (1960 1535,

11. H. Hirth & A. Care, "The Green turtle in the Gulf aof
Aden and the Sevchelles Islands’, Verhardelimpen der

L ength g! carapace 1Y)
i

;

00 M w0 130 W0 womm

Lengih of skull  1X]

Fig. 2: Relationship between length of skull
and siraight lemgth of carapace in Green
turtle.

hall turtle is estimated (o have been just over &b
(X7kg).

According to Wilson (1976)Y a turtle weighing
6k (27kg) ‘was large encugh o provide a first
course in itself’, the haked bellv and carapace

Eonlnkiifke WNederlmdse Akedemie vam W erenschimp-
pen, AFD. Natwerkiende S8 (Mo, 5p (15000 [-44; H.
F. Hirth, ‘Synopsis of hiclogical datn on the Circen
turtle Chelonia mrydes (Linnaeus) 1758, FA0Q Figh-
criex Svmopsis Moo 83, Rome (19717 3 - 3

12. H. Hirth & A, Carr, ap ot (15700 14 & 15
13,0, A, Wilon, Food and Prink e Britain from the

Srope Age 1o Recem Times, Harmondsworth (190}
2003,

1



formed one dish, a stew mm{l from the fing and
guts gnother, while the and lights made an
excellent soup.

More direct information on the weights of late
18th century turtles may be oblained from contems
porary dummn:utarg' sources, for example the
Account Book of Samwel Birch, Lucas Birch &
Compory™ in the collections of the Museum of
London™, The surviving cash book of this company
ﬁans the period between lst January 1782 and 16th

ay 1783, and in its pa%_r.:a four individual weights
o turtles are mentioned (Table 2).

archaeological deposits in London, these are des.
cribed as follows:—

{1} Dump of post-medieval refuse, Thames fore-
ﬂcﬂaa& (Museum of London area 18). Chance find

The specimen, a plece of costal bone from the
carapace of a turtle (probably Green turtle) was
recovercd by E. A, Jarzembowski, Department of
Entomology. BM{INH) from the Thames foreshore,
next to Southwark Bridge on the downstream side
(Mus, Lond. area 18) and was found in the spoil
excavated from a 3 foot (0.91m) deep pit™. The

Weight of turile Price
Ih (kg

130 i) £13 - 65 « Od
jul| e £2 -k -4
L] 13 2 - 165 - 0
110 &1 £7 - 05 - Dd

Dute porchased Supplier
August 15th, 1783 not recorded
September 16ch, 1783 Bl peconded
July 13h, 1784 ot recorded
July Hirh, 1784 o recorded

** Thee were probably immature furiies whose flesh would have bn.:u:n comsidered too *walery'
for soup and therefore caten as sieaks.

Table 2: Weight and price of turtles sold in London in the late 18th cemtury.

Data are taken from the Account Book of Birch, Birch & Co., 15 Cornhill.

Heavier turtles are recorded elsewhers in the
contemporary literature, An amicle that appeared
in the 1753 issuc of the Crenleman's Mapazine!®, for
example, menbions furiles infroduced o London
from Ascension Island in the south Atantic Ocean,
whose weights were 300Ib (136kg) or more. While
in & later issoe (175407 there is a description of a
gravid female weighing Jcwd (152.4kg) ™ whose
carapace measured 4 foot 3 inches (1.27m) long by
about 3 foof (L91m) wide, Thiz animal was presen-
ted by Lord Anson™ to the geoflemen of White's
Coffec House, and was said o have laid five eggs
shortly after,

Remains of Turtle from (ther Archacological
Deposits in London.

Besides the group of eipght bones of Chelonia
wiydas from Leadenhall Buildings, the authors have
recently examined iwe other examples of turtle from

14. Birch, Birch & Co. were confectioners and pasiry
eonks who operated from their shop at 15, Corahill,
They were responsible for much of the catering ad
evenis such as the Lord Mayers bangoet and other
similur ceremanial ocensions beiween © 1760 and ©
1836, A short history of this company may be found
in the unpublished Musenm of Lendon M5 engitled
‘A Brief History of Ring & Brymer’. Ring & Brymer
was the company that took over Birch & Birch in ¢
1436,

i5% P. L. Armitage wishes o thank Christopher Bllmers,
Modern Dept, Mussum of London, for drawing his
atleation @ this a2ccount baok.

16, Anon, The Gentleman's Magazine 33 (1753 485

17. Anon, The Genfleman's Mapazine 24 (1754) 337

1%, We have presumed that as the weipht of this animal

12

Lreasure hunter responsible for digging the pit, pre-
sented the clay pipes found in association with the
turtle hone to Jarzembowski, who reports that
according to the system of classification proposed by
Atkinson & Oswald (19697 two types are repre-
sented, L22 (¢ 1680 - 1710) and L25 {¢ 1730 - 1760).

The piece of costal bone measures 920 mm by
238.5 mm (.67 in by 9.39 in) and is 13.7 mm {0.54
in} thick. As is usual for animal bones Pecovered
from waterlogged levels on or near the foreshore,
the surface of the specimen is stained dark brown.

(2) 18th/19th century well, Butcher Row, Ratcliff,

El_q.cl;ljdnn El4. Excavated by the Inner London Unit

Two arliculated costal bones from the carapace of
a turtle {probably Green turtle) were found amongst
a deposit of general domestic refuse forming part of
the infill to an 18th/19th century well, Ratcliff, E14

i& writlen ns *300 weight' the author meant 3 cwt and
nivt 3 pounds weight.

1%. In his baok The World of the Seo published in 1869,
the Rev. H. M, Hart says, e 154, that & was
Admirnl  Anmson wha, i ]"E:k brooght  the first
turtle 1o England,

2 E. A Jarzsembowski, pers, oo,

Il D, Adkinson & A, Dswald, 'London clay iobacco

RJDH& I Igr-‘f(fllirc'ﬁ-:;_irjm' Asz 3lh{1'=‘69]’:?t-21?: see Rla,
- Oswald, i : the A alogist,

Y (1078, HT&‘!"]}S. pes for the Archesslopin, BAR

21, Alison Locker, perr comm: The animal bones fro
the I6th and 1'.|'DI;| cenlury levels Jt:::dhuunnf:pnnznd'l
on by A. Locker In . Schwabh & B. Nurse. "Butcher
Row, Ratchif, E. 14, Trops Londor and Middleses
Archaeal Soc B (1977) 215251,
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The bones, which are incomplete (broken in anti-
quity), are both 93 mm (0.37 in) thick and measure
303 mm by 47.5 mm (11.% in by 1.87 in) and 1759
mm by 1107 mm (693 in by 4.36 in) respectively.

Both are stained wvellow, and the longest piece
has on its outer surface, a straight line scored by a
knife, possibly made during removal of the outer
plate®®,

History of the Turtle Trade in Late 18th ind 1%th
Centory London

The purpose of this last section is to briefly ex-
plore the histerical background to the turtle trade in
London, and to suggest that further remains of Green
turtle await discovery on archagological sites in the
City of London.

Although it is well known that the Green turtle
was frequently exploited throughout the fate 16th
and 17th centuries as a source of [ood by seafarers
and West India plantation owners,™ no where can
we find evidence for its introduction to Britain be.
fore the mid 18th century™. The earliest reference o
turtle in London, known to us, is to be found in the
1753 issue of the Gentleman's Magazine™, where
there is an account of how a turile weijﬂling 350 b
{159 kgt was baked and eaten at the Kings Arms
tavern in Pall-Mall. Evidently this was a unique
event at the tavern as there was some difficulty
experienced in cooking the animal; the door of the
oven had to be dismantled in order that the furgle
might be inserted.

By the second half of the 18th century, thera had
developed a thriving trade in imported live Green
turthes between the West Indies and London, Addit-
ional supplies to the London market came from
Ascension Island in the south Atlantic Ocean™, a
much favoured provisioning station for English ships
returning home from the East Tndies™.

23, The plates of Green turlle are thin and leck the
atpong eolours found in moriolseshell derived from tha
Hawkshill turtle and genernlly have Hftle comumercial
wvalue, They are, howewer, accasionally wsed ns inlay
for furnimore, See R, Webster, Gemz; Their Sources,
Dgn:jr:.rfp]!-m: ard  Idemiificarion, London {19700 438-
q441,

24 1, T, Parsons, The Green Turtle and Mar, Gaines-
ville, Florida (1962) 11-14,

25, Its delny in reaching these shores i oxiremely pue-
ling when it 18 conssdered that this species was being
eaten by English silors wisiling Wast  Inddies
fully two centuries before itz recorded introdection to
Britain, and that its wirtues as & food perticularly
snitable for convalescents and these of delicate con-
stitution (espazially when served in the form of soup)
were being extolled as early as the mid 17th comiory
by’ English writers on copkery, See, for i.‘:'!:;‘rlf:!‘.h
wufer, Healths Tmprovesens (1646) 180, rafer (1)

pwere in poor condition after the lon

On reaching London, the turtles (most of whom
wea voyage)
were placed in heated iron tanks and fattened 1o t

required weight, Although their meal was occasion-
ally eaten, either boiled or baked, the majority of
the imported turtles were destined to be made into
soup. Green turtle soup rapidly became a Jim:r.ig:
food much refished by gourmets. The following
declaration published in 1863 epitomises the praise
aften bestowed on this dish: “Every good citizen
should delight in turile soup. Smooth, appetising,
without any over-predominance of flavour, far more
nutritive and tasty than any claszical dish in Homer,

In spite of the exhorlation to ‘every . . . citizen’ to
partake of this dish, the reality was that because of
the high cost, only the wealthier ¢lasses of late 18th
and early 19th century London were in a position
to enjoy its delights. For those less fortunate, there
was always ‘mock turtle soup’ made from a calf's
head, well scasoned, and served with veal gravy and
Madeira, which, according o Wilson {(1976)* made
ils appearance in English cookery books almast as
soon as the genuine article.

The association between turtle soup and the Lord
Mayor's banguets is widely known, origing of
this tradition may be traced back to 1761 and the
Lord Mayor's bangquet attended by King George TTL
The menu for this banguet survives in the collections
of the Guildhall Record Office (Guikdhall misc, M5
70,2} and it shows thal only the more important
puests, seated at the King's, Foreign Minister’s and
the Lord Mayor & Aldermen's tables, were served
with turile, while the Lady Mayoress, together with
lasser personages, seated here, were apparently
only provided with dishes of *olios and pottages’ as
a first course, Their lower social rank obviously did
not entitle them to sample such delights as turtle.

After 1761, turtle soup ‘hecame a regular feature
of many bangquets and ceremonial dinners organised

by E. Fhipson, The Awimal-Lore of Shakeipeare's
Tirme, Longdaon (18B3) 302

26 Anon, The Gentlewion's Magazime 23 (1753) 441

27, 0, Goldsmith, 4 Histery of the Barth and Apimealed
wWature, London (1774 repid, 1805) Vaol. 5, 194 & 105
Ascepsion Tslamd is a desclate veleanic island that
has no redbdent population of Green turtles. Duenag
Dec-Fone, the island s used as a breeding centre
by migraiing HBrazilian furfles — A, Comr & H
Hirtl, “The ecobegy and migrntions of sea furibes, 3
Comparative featores of lsolated Green fortle colo-
I.'I'_I.?EI, Amerlean Musom Noviteles Mo, 3091 (1953)
]

28, 1. 1. Parson, op cif (1962) 400

25, ‘Aleph’ [City Press) Lopdon Sceper and London
People; London (1863 334,

A, Wilson cites the 6ih edition of Hannah Glasses The
Art of Cookery publislbed in 17588 as evidence of this
— C. A, Wikkon, op clt {1976) 204,
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by the Lord Mayor and Livery Companies of the
City of London. The association between City alder-
men and turtle soup, in particular, was to become
fixed in people’s minds. So much so. that when in
the late 1%th cenlury, stocks of turtle in the West
Indies and Ascension Island were in danger of be-
coming seriously depleted by over exploitation, the
Reverend Hart" was moved to comment that “Turtle
fishing . , . . is carried on regardless of the future
. - - - the consequence is that the turtle is becoming
scarce - ., unless something is done, there will be
reat difficulty in sepplving the alderman of Lon-
Elun with that celebrated soup, upon which, accord-
ing to popular belief, the aldermanic existence de-
pends.” He goes on (o report that the establishment
in ‘recent times' of turtle parks have in some mea-
sure obviated ‘such a terrible disaster as the sxtinct-
ion of turtles and aldermen,’

Very little is known concerning the early organi-
sation of the turtle trade, Certainly turtles were
sold directly to various establishments in Londen
by ship’s caplains, some of whom apparently
specialised in this traded. The bulk of the trade,
however, was probably controlled by middlemen
whose identity and exact role remains unknown,
but may have included West India merchants.

Although the Account Hook of Birch, Birch &
Compariy provides the names of eleven people who
sold turtles to the firm, we have unfortunately not
been able to establish any link between them and
the turtle trade. The London Directories were
unable to throw any light on this matter. For
example, the records of Birch, Birch & Co. show
that on July 28th 1784, the sum of £56 - 3z - 0d
was paid to a Mr Neunberg for an unspecified
number of turtles. A search through  Batlev's
Brisish Directory Vol, T London for the year 1784
revealed one entry only under this surname. This
wis (. V. Neunberg of No. 75 Corohill, wlhose
profession was listed as ‘potter and glass seller”: a
somewhal unlikely candidate for a dealer in live
turtles. A firmer, but as yet unsubstantiated lead
was provided by the reference in the Birch & Birch
account book to the purchase of a turtle from the
Tamaica Coffee House, The Jamaica Coffee House
was situated in Cornhill and gocording to Kent's
Directory for the year 1783, this was also the
address of John Hill a West India merchant.

3l. :Ii-Iﬁ'd..M- Hart, The World of the Sen, London {1B65)

3L Bee, for example, the reference io Capt, Crayion "The
El;glh:" in Anon, The Femtleman's Mugrzine 23{1753)

¥, P L Simmonds. The Commercial Products of e
Yo, London (1878) 365,
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The later history of the turtle trade is betté.
documented. The advent of the steam ship greatly
facilitated the movement of live turtles across the
Atlantic, and by 1878 the total number of turtles
imported - annually to Britain was said o have
reached 15,000, According  to Simmonds
(IB83F™ about 3,000 turtles were supplied each ViiE
by the nesting on Ascenzion Islamd,

Throughout the late 19th century, Jamaica served
as the principal centre for the turtle trade in the
Caribbean, Shipments of turtles caught on the
nesting beaches on the Cayman Islands and Toriu-
guero Beach were sent via Jamaica to England
and the United States. In addition to live turtles,
Jamaica supplied the TLondon markets with sun-
dried turtle meat®™ Tinned turthe products also
started (o arrive in London from the Caribbean by
the mid 19th century as the following extract from
Punch published dn 1844, illustrates™-

Tuirtles jor the Million

“Last summer the metropolis was inundated with
fourpenny pine-apples, and though ship-load after
ship-load arrived in the Docks, “the cry was still,
they come”. This cheap luxury haying retired for
the season, we arc promised real turtle for sixteen
people out of a 2lb tin, being, by-the-by, about a
Eravy-spoon per head, or rather per mouth, of this
mast salaciows relish , . . The cheap turtle is made
from fish seized while spotting m their native
walers . . . and “preserved under patent at Hon-
duras”, before they have time to feel the terroms
of the situation, and lose any of their liveliness

By the late 19th century, other canneries had
been built to supply the démand for tinned furtle
meat and soup. One of the largest factories, al
Key West in Florida, was said to pack each year,
200,000 pounds (0000kgy of dried turtle meat
for export to England and Cuba® The increased
traffic in live turtles, together with importation of
dried and tinned turtle products, meant that by the
end of the 19th century turtle soup was no longer
the prerogative of the rich but could e enjoved
even by the lower middle classes. Today, the pro-
duction by John Lusty Ltd™ of relatively inexpen.
sive cans of turtle soup means that many mare
people are now able to try this exotic food,
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Appendix

The Gloss

. Wine plass (fragment) bead glass; solid inverted balu-
sler rivted from 2 la annulaled kop by a collar.

he. e 1705-15; MOL AZG350,

2 Wine pglass, lead plass; Towvard bowl (fragment); shor
drawn stem; solid conical font,

ht, 108mm; late 15ch century; MOL A2G334,

3, Wine glass, lend glass; trompet bowl (fragment)
short drown sdem: plain conical ool

he. Simm; late 18ih century; MOL A2635S,
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4, Wine glass, lead glass; trumpet bowl (fragment); short
drawn stem wilth [lztbened Enop in mid section; collar at
hase; plain conical food,

hi S lale 1H1h cenlory; MOL A26356,

5 Wine glass. lead glass; short drawn stem with bladed
knop and sfepped junction below bewl (fragment); collar
at base, plein conieal [ool.

hi. Timm; ¢ 1815 MOL A26357,

. Wine glass, lead plas: conical bowl (fragment);
bladed knop and triple collar below Bowl,

ht. B0mm; c. RS MOL A25356,

ROSEMARY WEINSTEIM

4

Fig 3 Wineglasses from late 18ih century well, Leadenlall Buildings.

(Drawing by Kathorine Hayes Armitage)

fApperdiy continued or page 16)
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Fig. 4: Polnis of measurement on the skoll of Green turtle ©helonia rreyudis.

Nomenclature follows that of E. 5. Galfney, “An illustrated glossary of turtle

skull nomenclature’, American Museum Novitates No, 2486 (1973 1 - 33. For
an carlier description of the skull of Green turile, reference may be made to
H. L. Kesteven, ‘The anatomy of the head of the Green turtle Chelone midas,
Latr. Part 1. The skull, Jourral and Proceedings of the Roval Society aof New

South Wales for 1910 44 (Part 3) (1911) 368 - 400,

(Diagrams by Katharine & Philip Armicsgs)
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